- 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax |_oms No. 15450047
2018

Open to Public

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4847(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

» Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
Department of the Traasiury

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Farm990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2018, and ending , 20
B Check if applicable: | C Name of organization FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT D Employer identification numbor
[ Address change Doing business as 36-4306362
O name change Number and street {or P.0. box it mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone numbear
3 iwviat return 33 N LASALLE ST 900 B47-668-2114
[J Finaireturnfterminated|  Gity or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal cade
L Amended return  |CHICAGO L 60602-2603 G Gross receipts $ 406678
O application pending |F Name and address of principal officer:  ALEXANDRA SOSSA Hia) s this a group return for subordnates? [_] Yes No
SAME AS ABOVE H{b) Are all subordinates included? O ves No
| Tax-exempt status: 501(c)({3) ] 501(c) ( ) € (nsert 1o.) Clagariayor [ s27 It "Ne.” attach a list. {see Instructians)
J Website: »  WWW.FLAPILLINOIS.ORG H{c) Group exemption number »
Form of organization: E Corporation [:] Trust D Associat on I:I Other » [ L Year of formation: 1999 I M Slate of legal domicile: L

Summary

Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: IMPROVE WORKING CONDITIONS FOR MIGRANT
§ AND SEASONAL WORKERS IN THE AGRICULTURAL AND LANDSCAPING INDUSTRIES IN ILLINOIS THROUGH OUTREAGH,
g LITIGATION, COMMUNITY AND LEGAL EDUCATION ANDREFERRALS
g | 2 Checkthis box » []if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
8| 3 Number af voting members of the governing bady (Part VI, line 1a) . 3 9
z 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 9
& & Total rumber of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (Part V, line2a) . . . . . 5 4
2| 6 Tolal number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) .o P 6 20
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIll, column (C) line 12 o 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T.line38 . . . . . . . . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIll, lineth). . . . . . . . . . . . 285159 346206
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIl line2g) . . . . . . . . . . . 93775 51233
2 [ 10 Investment income (Part Vili, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . . . . . . 8052 6039
%111 Other revenue (Part Viil, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10¢, and 11e) . . . 4334 3200
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIIi, column (A), line 12) 391320 406678
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part X, column (A), lines 1-3) .
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part X, column (A), line 4) .
2 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5—1 O) 197925 205300
£ | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (&), line 11e) . . . . .
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » 19489
w17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A}, lines 11a~11d, 11f-24e) e e 203737 271810
18  Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 401662 477110
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline12 . . . . . . . . -10342 70432
54 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
§§ 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 292450 223808
é’%: 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line26) . . . . . Co e 7445 2458
22| 2 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from Ilne 20 e 285005 221350
Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | d at | nayst examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the bast of my knowiedge and belief, itis
true, correct, and com . Decl tlon afpfaparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowladge.
—_L=ZF Ll Z/(& /ra
Sign Signaturs of officer ] Date ) 4
Here Gose ue 0 ORETPEUT
Type cor print name ana title
Paid Print/Type preparer's name P(?.;rer‘s sugna(ur% Dat]ls’/l 9 Chec< [] PTIN
Preparer [SAROLYN ACTON ’LQLW et A 8 self-employed P01694802
Use Only Firn's name _ » C. ACTON & ACCOCIATES, INC ! Firm's EIN B 36-3565648
Firm's address » NILES IL 60714-0976 Phone no. 847-966-0347
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . . [“1Yes [ JNo

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) page 2
g qil]l  Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartttt . . . . . . . . . . . . . O

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:

IMPROVE WORKING CONDITIONS FOR MIGRANT AND SEASONAL WORKERS IN THE AGRICULTURAL AND LANDSCAPING
INDUSTRIES IN ILLINOIS THROUGH QUTREACH, LITIGATION, COMMUNITY LEGAL EDUCATION AND REFERRALS

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ7 . . . . . . L, COYes [Z]No
If “Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
Services? . . L L L L L L Lo e s s OYes []No
If “Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses § 411724 including grants of §  121697) (Revenue $§ 51233)
HELPED IMPROVE THE WORKING CONDITIONS OF MIGRANT AND SEASONAL WORKERS IN ILLINOIS INCLUDING LOW INCOME
FARMWORKERS, LANDSCAPERS, PACKING HOUSE WORKERS, CANNERY WORKERS AND MEAT AND POULTRY WORKERS IN
THE AGRICULTURAL AND LANDSCAPING INDUSTRIES IN ILLINOIS. THIS IS ACCOMPLISHED THROUGH OUTREACH, LITIGATION,
COMMUNITY EDUCATION AND REFERRALS. SOME OF THIS SERVICE |S PROVIDED THROUGH INKIND DONATIONS OF SERVICES
FACILITIES AND MATE R AL S,

4b (Code: ) (Expenses$ including grantsof $ )(Revenue® )

4c (Code: )(Expenses$ including grantsof $ ) (Revenve$ )

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses b 411724

Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) Page 3
m Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 494/(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule A . ) . 11V
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contnbutors (see |nstruct|ons)? . 2 (v
3 Did the organizaticn engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition tc
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . . .o . 3 v
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a sectlon 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part !l . o 4 v
5 s the organization a section 501(c){d), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershp dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If “Yes,” complete Schedule C. Part Il 5 '
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which dorors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f
“Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | - e 6 v
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, mcludmg easements to preserve open space,
the environment, histeric land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part Il 7 v
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il B, C e 8 v
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV . B . 9 |V
10 Did the organization, directly or through a relatad organization, hold assets In temporarily restricted
endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If “Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V 10 v
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is “Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VH, Vill, IX, or X as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?7 /f “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI . o . . 11a| v
b Did the organization report an amount for investments—ather securities in Part X, hne 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vil . 11b v
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Viil . 11e v
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, ine 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX 11d v
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25?2 If "Yes, " complete Schedu/e D Part X |[11e v
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax pasitions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X 11f v
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Parts X! and Xil C C CoL 12a| v
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audlted financial statements for the tax year? i
“Yes,” and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X! and X!l is optional |12b v
13  Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)ii)? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 v
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? .o 14a v
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts | and IV. 14b v
15  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV 15 v
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts il and IV. R 16 v
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions) 17 v
18 Did the organization report mare than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part il . 18|V
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming actlvmes cn Part VIII hne Qa?
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule G, Part Il 19 v
20 a Did the organization operate one or more hospital faCIImes? lf “Yes, & complete Schedule H . 20a v
b If"“Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts  and I . 21 v

Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) Paga 4
B Checkiist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule I, Parts | and lif e 22 v
23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compersaticn of the
arganization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J . e Lo 23 v
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding pnncupal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f “Yes,” answer Jines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No.” go to line 25a . 24a v
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary perlod excephon” . 24b
c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . . 24¢
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandmg at any tlme dunng the year’) . 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c}(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part 25a v
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If “Yes,"” complete Schedule L, Part | . . 25b v
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any
current or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated emplcyees, or
disqualified persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il e e . 26 v
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il . 27 v
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L,
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV 28a v
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule L, Part IV o .o 28b v
¢ An entity of which a current or former offlcer dlrector trustee, or key employee (or a famlly member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If “Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV 28c v
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 v
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M . 30 v
31  Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? I" "Yes complete Schedule N Partl 31 v
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If “Yas,”
complete Schedule N, Part Il Ce e e 32 v
33  Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | . .. 33 v
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entuty? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part oo
or IV, and Part V, line 1 34 v
35a Did the organization have a controlled entlty w1th|n the meaning of section 512(b)(13}? .. 35a v
b If “Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
relatec organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, fine 2 . Com oE . W u 36
37  Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is rot a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 v
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part Vi, lines 11b and
197 Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. 8 v
IZXX1 Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V O
Yes | No
ta Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a 3
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winning_;s to prize winners? . 1c | V/

Form 990 (2018)
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Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) -

Yes No
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a
If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b |V
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
Did the arganization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . 3a v
If "Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O . 3b
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a v
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: »
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . Sa v
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b v
If *Yes"” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T7? 5c
Does the arganization have annual gross receipis that are normally greater than $1OO 000 and d|d the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . 6a v
If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contrlbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b
Organizations that may receive deductlble contnbutlons under sectlon 170(c)
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . . Lo . 7a v
if “Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provuded’7 . . 7b
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dlspose of tanglble personal property for which 't was
required to file Form 82827 . . e, 7c v
If “Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 fnled durlng the year . . . 7d
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? | 7e v
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f v
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 79
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? | 7h
Sponsaring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . 8 Y
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 . 9a v
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b v
Section 501{c}(7) organizations. Enter:
Intiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, fine 12 . . . . . 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIil, line 12, for public use of club facﬂmes . 10b
Section 501(c){12) organizations. Enter:
Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . 11b
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzatlon f|hng Form 990 in Ileu of Form 10417 12a
If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . 12b
Section 501(c){29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans e e e e 13b |
Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . 13¢ |
Did the organization receive any payments for mdoor tannlng services durlng the tax year" . 14a v
If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O 14b
Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 v
If “Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N
Is the organization an educational institution subject tc the section 4968 excise tax cn net investment income? | 16 v
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) Paye 6

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No”
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPartVt . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . 1a 9
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 9
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relatlonship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . e e . 2 v
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customanly performed by or under the drrect
supervision of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 v
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 v
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . 5 v
6  Did the organization have members or stockholders? Lo 6 v
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appomt
one or more members of the governing body? . . . .o e . 7a
b Are any gaovernance decisions of the organization reserved to (or sub;ect to approval by) members
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . . 7b
8 Did the crganization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken durmg
the year by the following:
a Thegoverning body? . . . . e 8a |V
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the qovernlng body" o 8b
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vil, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the arganization's mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses in Schedule O. . . . 9 v
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yas | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . o 10a v
b If "Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are cansistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
11a las the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 890 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? |t1a| v
b Describe in Schedule Q the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No," go to line 13 . . . . 12a| v
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually inierests that could give rise to confllcts? 12b| v
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how this was done . . . . e 12¢| ¥
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower pohcy? . e 13 | v
14  Did the crganization have a written document retention and destruct»on pohcy’7 e e 14 |Y
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEQ, Executive Director, or top management offical . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a| v
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . e 15b v
If *Yes"” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see mstructlons)
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? . . . . Ce e e e 16a v
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written pohcy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . ., 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed®»

18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)
{3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apgly.
[1 Own website ] Another's website (] Uponrequest [] Other (explain in Schedule Q)

19  Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, contlict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20  State the name. address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records P
ALEXANDRA SOSSA, 33 N LASALLE ST, SUITE 900, CHICAGO, IL 60602-2603, 847-668-2114

rorm 990 (2018)



Form 980 (2018) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any linginthisPartVll . . . . . . . . . . . . . O
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Compiete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

» List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

» List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee.”

e List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

* List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

Check this box if neither the arganization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(©)
) ®) (do not ch::kblri,;(::?c than one ©) () )
Name and Title Average | tox, unless person is both an Reportable Feportable Estimated
hours per | gificer and a director/trustee) | COmpensation |compensation from amount of
week (list any eslslol =laz] = from related other
hours for ;g z| =& _al% § the i organizations compensation
related é g- g g s |83|a organization (W-2/1099-MISC) frcn:m thg
organizatiors a5 § 2185 |W-2/1088-MISC) organization
below dotted| = Z | & R E] and related
linc) 5 5 3 Bt organizations
N g
(1) BALDEMARLOPEZ 2
PRESIDENT v 0 0 0
(2 Jackking o 2
VICE-PRESIDENT v 0 0 0
(3) MARGO DELAY 2
TREASURER v 0 0 0
(4) JOSE RIVERO i 2
SECRETARY Y 0 0 0
(5)__ VINCENT H BECKMAN IV S
TRUSTEE v 0 0 0
{6) _ROYALBERG . 1]
TRUSTEE v 0 0 0
_{7)._SHAHRYAR AFSHAR 1
TRUSTEE v 0 0 0
{8) MAGDALENARIVERA 1
TRUSTEE v 0 0 0
(9) RONLEVTSKY 1
TRUSTEE v 0 0 0
(10) ALEXANDRASOSSA 40
KEY EMPLOYEE v 101152 0 0
(11)
(12
(13) i
Q8 b

Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) Page 8
348"l Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
()
Pasition
@) ®) (fn not check more than one ©) ® )
Name and title Average | box, unless person is both an Raoportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | officer and a dircctor/trustee) compensation  [compensation from amount of
week (list any| P e oy =T = from related cther
hourstor | 221 & | %[ & R the organizations compensation
related g‘a Z( 81 o %g g organization (W-2/1C89-MISC}) from the
organizations| 2§ 5173 Eg = |(W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted| == | & g g and relatsd
line) G|z 2 =] arganizations
8|2 Z
3
Ll 7
2
O8) i
L
)
{18) B . S
a9, SRS S
(20) S
) e
@)
(28] e
@A) e
2] e
ib Sub-total. . . . . . . . . . . . .. ...
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VI, SectionA . . . . . »
d Total (add linesiband1c). . . . . . .

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization »

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 v

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual . . . . . . L L L, 4 v
§ Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . . . . . . 5 v

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete ihis table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
comgensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.

{A) (B) (C)
Name and business addrass Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization »

rorm 990 (2018)
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Page 9
Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII| . .. |
(A) (8) (G) 0)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt htisiness axcluded from tax
function ravenuo under scctions
revenue 512-514
2 £ 1a Federated campaigns . . . | 1a
g 3 b Membershipdues . . . . [1b
45| © Fundraisingevents . . . . [1c 14256
g &| d Related organizations . . . | 1d
g E| e Government grants (contributions) | e
- f Al other contributions, gifts, grants,
3 g and similar amounts not included above | 1¢ 331950
< 2 g Noncash contributions included in lines 'a-1.§ 176159
S &| h Total Add lines 1a-1f . > 346206
o Business Code
g 2a |1FGAl FFES 541100 51233 51233
[ b
§ c
8 d
2 I
‘g‘a f  All other program service revenue .
a g Total, Add lines 2a-2f . T 51233
3 [nvestment income (including dividends, interest,
and other similar amounts) > 6039 6039
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds »
5 Royalties L »
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6a Grossrents
b Less: rental expenses
c Rental income or {loss)
d Net rental income or ({0ss) .. b
7a  Gross amount from sales of | () Securiies (i) Other
assets other than inventory
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses .
¢ Gainor (loss) .
d Net gain or (loss) »
g 8a Gross income from fundraising
o events (nat including $ 14256
&’ of contributions reportéa-aﬁnli‘ﬁie"ﬂ:‘):
E SeePart IV, line18 . . . . . a 3200
o b Less:directexpenses . . . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . P 3200 3200
9a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePartiV,linetd . . . . . g
b Less:directexpenses . . . . b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . P
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances . . . g
b Less:costofgoodssold . . . b
¢ Netincome or {loss) from sales of inventory . . b
Miscellaneous Revaenie Business Code
it1a
b
c -
d All other revenue
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d . » 0
12  Total revenue. See instructions » 406678 57272| 3200

Form 990 (2018)



organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here » [ if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . . . .

Form 990 (2018) Page 10
Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(cj(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part iX . .. ]
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, (A) G (€ o)
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Vill. fotal expenses M fioancs = | enuroromaanas engee.
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 .
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 .
4  Benefits paid to or for members .
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors,
trustees, and key employees N
6  Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons {(as defired under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7  Other salaries and wages 176766 156536 20230
8  Pension plan accruals and contnbunons (mclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9  Other employee benefits . 14837 12397 2440 13697
10  Payroll taxes . 12128 1569
11 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management
b Legal
¢ Accounting 5319 5318
d Lobbying . .
e Professional fundraising services. See Pan IV Ime 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (fline 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) 34770 21900 12870
12  Advertising and promotion
13 Office expenses 6871 6051 381 439
14 Information technology
15 Royalties .
16  Occupancy 24000, 21000 3000
17 Travel 14169 14165 4
18 Payments of travel or entertamment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings 1749 1544 84 121
20 Interest . .
21 Payments to afflllates .
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzauon 1418 1418
23  Insurance . e e 1710 1710
24  Other expenses. itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A} amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 163 163
b B} 176158 158298 | 17860
c |
. |
e All other expenses MISCELLANEGUS 5483 4414 | 1069
25 Total functional expenses, Add lines 1 through 24e 477110 411724 45897 19489
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

Form 990 (2018)
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Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartX . . . . . , . . . . . . . [
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 374 1 40190
2  Savings and temporary cash investments . 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net R 3
4  Accounts receivable,net . . . . 1050, 4
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former offrcers drrectors
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees.
Complete Part Il of SchedulelL . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
6 Loans and other receivatles from other disqualif ed persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers and
sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(8) voluntary employees' beneficiary
o organizations (see instructions). Complete Part Il of Schedule L. . . 6
§ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< | 8 Inventories for sale or use 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part V] of Schedule D 10a 4255
b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . 10b 3216 24517 10c 1039
11 Investments—publicly traded securites . . . . . . . . . . 250850 11 | 181627
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . 12
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 17 . . . . . . . 13
14 Intangible assets . . . e e e e 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, Ime 11 L e 952 15 952
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal llne 34) . 292450, 16 223808
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . 6251 17 1321
18 Grantspayable . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..o 18
19  Deferredrevenue . . . . . . . . . . . o .. 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 1194] 21 1137
#122 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors,
= trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
"-5“ disqualified persons. Complete Part il of Schedule L . . . . . . 22
J |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . 23
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 . . . . 7445 26 2458
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P [:] and
o complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
& |27 Unrestricted netassets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 285005 27 208347
3 28 Temporarily restricted netassets . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 13003
B |29 Permanently restricted net assets. . . . 29
z Organizations that do not {ollow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here b [:] and
5 complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . . R 30
w |31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund Lo 31
f‘ 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 32 |
2 33 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances. . . . . . . . . . . . . 285005 33 221350
34  Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . . . ., . 292450! 34 223808

Form 990 (2018}



Form 990 (2018) Page 12
Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI N . O
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), line 12) . . . . . . . . 1 406678
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 477110
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . 3 -70432
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Pan X ||ne 33 column (A)) 4 285005
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 6777
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 Investment expenses . 7
8  Prior period adjustments . . 8
9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explam in Schedule O) . . 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X Ilne
33, column(B)) . . . : 10 221350
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . O
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: []JCash [JAccrual [JOther
If the arganization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . 2a v
If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
[ Separate basis ] Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? o 2b | V
If "Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
[ Separate basis [} Consclidated basis [ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversignt
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | v
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337. da v
b If "Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts? If the organlzatlon dld not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. 3b

Farm 990 (2018)



. . « OMB No. 1545-0047
SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support i
{Farm 990 or 990-E2) Gomplete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2 @ 1 8
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-E2. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Servico > Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information.
Name of the organization

Inspection
Employer identification number
FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT 36-4306362

Part ! Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 [J A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b) (1} (A} ().
2 [ A school described in section 170(b){1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-E2).)
3 [} Ahaspital or a cooperalive hospital service organization described in section 170(b){1)(A){iii).
4

[J A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1){A)(iii). Enter the
hospital’'s name, city, and state:

section 170(b}{1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

L] A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b){(1){A)(v).

(] An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
descnbed in section 170(b}(1){A){vi). (Complete Part 11.)

[ A community trust described in section 170{b}{1){A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

9 Oan agricultural research organizat on described in section 170{b)(1){(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

~N D

4]

10 An organization that normally receives: (1) mare than 3373% 6f s sUpport from conitribufions, membership fees, and Gross

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part il.)

11 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes
of ore or more publicly supported organizations descrbed in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 121, and 12g.

a [ Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directars or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [J Type IL. A supporting organization supervised or contralled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ [ Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [ Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part {V, Sections A and D, and Part V.,

e [ Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type }l, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . [:

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

—n

i} Name of supported organization it) EIN {iii} Type of organization | (iv) Is the organization | {v) Amount of menerar vi) Amount of
.. f . y
(described onlines 1-10 |listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) cocument? instructions) irstructions)
Yes No

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. Nc. 11285k Schedule A (Form 990 or 930-E2) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

Page 2

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170({b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1){A}(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under

Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 {b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 {e) 2018 (f) Total

1

6

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.”) .

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalt

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

Total. Add lines 1 through 3 .

The portion of total contributions by
each person (other  than a
governmental  unit or  publicly
supported crganization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) .

Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 (b} 2018 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total

7  Amounts from line 4
8 Gross ircome from interest, dw:dends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . Lo
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on .
10 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.) . ..
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12  Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions}) . . . . . 12 [
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, thlrd fourth or flfth tax year as a section 501(c)(3}
organization, check this box and stop here . . B T
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14  Public support percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . 14 %
15  Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part ll, line 14 . . . 15 Y%
16a 33'3% support test—2018. If the organization did not check the box on Ilne 13 and Ime 14 is 33'3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . N N
b 33%3% support test—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and I|ne 15 s 33‘ % or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton . . . . . . . . . . . P[]
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and fine 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box ard stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 L oo s s s e s s O
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part I how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization . . . N R
18  Private foundation. If the organlzatlon d|d not check a box on Ilne 13 163 16b 17a or 17b check thls box and see
instructions . . . . . . . L L0 L0 s s s s s e s e s e s e e s

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018
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Page 3

=FTedlll  Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part il.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 (b) 2015 {c) 20186 {d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.") 87580 113831 96914 190465 170047 658837
2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that s relatad to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose . . . 82762 76319 71073 98109 54433 382696
3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrefated trade or business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .
6 Total. Add lines 1 through5. . . . 170342 190150 167987 288574 224480 1041533
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualiﬁed persons . 5639 5797 7447 9037 8256 36176
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year 44066 24094 68160
¢ Addlines7aand70 . . . . 5639 5797 51513 33131 8256 104336
8 Public support. (Subtract line 7¢ from
line 6.) . 937197
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 {b) 2015 {c) 2016 {d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
9 Amounts from lineé . . . . . . 170342 190150 167987 288574 224480 1041533
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from s|milar sources . 8609 12138 8742 8052 6039 43580
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .
c Addlines10aand1i0b . . . . 8609 12138 8742 8052 6039 43580
11 Net income from unrelated busuness
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on
12 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPartVL) . . . . . 156 501 2 659
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11
and12.) . . . . . 179107 202789 176731 296626 230519 1085772
14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the arganization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . Pt S N
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . . . 15 86.32 %
16  Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part I, line15 . . . . . . . . . . . 16 81.28 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2018 (fine 10¢, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . 17 4.01 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part il line 17 . . . 18 4.94 %
19a 33'3% support tests=2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 14 and Ilne 15 is more than 33's%, and line
17 is not more than 33'3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . »
b 33'3% support tests—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33'3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33%3%, check this box and stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization » ]
20 Private foundation. I the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  » []

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 950-£2) 2018
Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part 1. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, compiete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Page 4

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

3a

4a

Sa

9a

10a

Are all of the organization's supported ocrganizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If “No,"” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relatior:ship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). .

Did the organization have a supported organization described n section 501(c)(4), (5), or (8)? If “Yes,” answer
(b; and (c) below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a})(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support ta such organizations was used exclusively far section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,"” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization™)? If
“Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b) and (c) below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does rot have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or {2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2){8)
purposes.

Did the organization aad, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
fiif) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one aor more of its supported organizations, cr (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If “Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contrioutor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(@3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? /f “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2).

Did the organization make a loan to a d squalified person (as defined in section 4358) not described in line 77?
If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 cr 990-EZ).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqralified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and arganizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))7? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person {as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes," provide detail in Part VI,
Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section

4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and zll Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,"” answer 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.}

Yes

No

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

5a

5b

5c

9a

9b

¢

10a

10b

Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ} 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or §90-[Z) 2018
sl Supporting Organizations (continued)
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Page 5

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization?

b A family member of a person described in (a) above?
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b} above? If “Yes" to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI,

]
Yes

No

11a

11b

11c

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? /f “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If “Na,"” describe 1n Part VI how controf
or managemernt of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Yes

No

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Did the organization provide 10 each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describirg the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (jii) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of natification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes, " describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Yes

No

3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1
a
b
c

2

a

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

(] The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
[] The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

[[] The organization supparted a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization’s supparted organization(s) would have been engaged in? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b} below.
Did the organization have the power ta regularly appoint or slect a majority of the officers, directars, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes

No

2a

2b

3a

3b

Schedule A {Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 6
W Type lli Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 ] Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must comoplete Sections A through E.

Section A—Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Net short-term capital gain

2 Recoveries of pricr-year distributions

3 Other gross income (see instructions)

4 Add lines 1 through 3.

5 Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instruct ons)
7 Other expenses (see instructions)

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

Gl ||| =

(-]

~

Section B—Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) Curr.ent Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see

instructions for short tax year or assets neld for part of year):
a Average manthly value of securities ia
b Average monthly cash balances ib
c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions).

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

6 Multiply line 5 by .0385.

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

N

[

B[O

Section C—Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

2 Enter 85% of line 1.

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year {from Section B, line 8, Column A)
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

5 Income tax imposed in prior year

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6

7 [ Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization (see
instructions).

O |d ||

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 880-E2) 2018
IE!I Type 11l Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D—Distributions

Page 7

Current Year

1

Amounts paid {o supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

N

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purpases of supporied
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

@[N] |G W

Distnbutions to attentive supported organizations to whch the organization is respansive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

0

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

. {ii) iii)
Section E—Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Di(ls)tributions Underdistributions Distri(butable
Pre-2018 Amount for 2018

1 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

2  Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018
(reasonable cause required —explain in Part Vl). See
instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

a From 2013

b From 2014

¢ From 2015

d From 2016

e From 2017 L

f Total of lines 3a through e

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years

h Applied to 2018 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2013 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

4  Distributions for 2018 from

Section D, line 7: $
a Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2018 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4,

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI, See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2019. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from 2014

b Excess from 2015 .
¢ Excess from 2016 .
d Excess from 2017 .
e Excess from 2018 .

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 8

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part li, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
HI, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c¢, 5a, 6, 93, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1¢; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

PART lll, SECTION B, LINE 12 - MISCELLANEQUS INCOME

Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule B
{Form 990, 990-E2,
or 990-PF)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Schedule of Contributors

» Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.

> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Name of the organization

FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT

Employer identification number
36-4306362

Organization type (check one):

Filers of:

Form 990 or 990-EZ

Form 990-PF

Section:

503(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

[ 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation

(0 527 political organization

[J 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

[0 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

[T 501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for poth the General Rule and a Specizl Rule. See

instructions.

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 990, 890-EZ, or 890-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000
or more {in money or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts 1 and Il. See instructions for determining a
contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

O Foran organization described in section 501(c}(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33'/1% support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi}, that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part Il, line
13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1)
$5,000; or (2} 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VI, line 1h; or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

(O For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entenng
“N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), li, and lll.

{0 For an arganization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively tor religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions
totaling $5,000 or more during the year

> 3

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990,
990-EZ, or 990-PF), but it must answer “No” on Part |V, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its
Form 990-PF, Part |, ling 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 980-EZ, or 990-PF).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 980, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.  Cat. No. 30613X

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)



Schedule B {Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 2 ~

Name of organization

FARMWORKER AND L ANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT

Employer identification number

364306362

Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
1 | COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF NORTHERN ILLINOIS Person
Payroll O
946 N2NDST $ 11000 Noncash O
(Complete Part Hl for
ROCKFORD W 81107 e, noncash contribulions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
2 COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF WILL COUNTY Person
Payroll O
J35NESSINGTONRD#102 . S 5000 Noncash U
{Complete Part Il for
JOLIET IL 60435 noncash contributions.)
@ (6) © @
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
3 | DAVID & SUZANNE JUDAY DONOR FUND Person
Payroll O
T1208 N GROVE RD $ 10000 Noncash O
{Compiete Part Il for
SYCAMORE IL 60178 e noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
4 | DOUGLAS & LYNN M ROBERTS FAMILY FQUNDATION Person
Payroll O
308 W STATE ST, s 5000 Noncash |
{Complete Part 1l for
SYCAMORE L 60178 noncash contributions.)
(@) (b) (c) {d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
5 DR SCHOLL FOUNDATION i - Person
Payroli O
1033 SKOKIE BLVD #230 $ 5000 Noncash [
(Complete Part Il tor
NORTHBROOK IL 60062 . noncash contributions.)
@) (b) © d
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
6 FOX RIVER VALLEY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION Person
Payroll O
111 WDOWNER PLACE SUITE 312 $ 5000 Noncash |
(Complete Part Il for
AURORAIL60506 noncash contributions.)

Schedule B (Farm 990, 890-E2, or 990-PF) (2018)



Schedule 8 {Form 9390, 990-E2Z, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 2 g

Name of organization
FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT

Employer identification number

Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
... | FULLCIRCLE FOUNDATION ) Person
Payroll O
7301 BURGETT RD 8 6000 Nancash O
{Compiete Part Il for
RICHMOND IL 60071 noncash contributions.)
@ ) © (@
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
8 HELEN BRACH FOUNDATION Person
Payrolt O
1045 S MICHIGANAVE $ 10000 Noncash O
(Complete Part Il for
CHICAGO 1L 80603 noncash contributions.)
(a) () (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
.9 | ILLINOIS BAR FOUNDATION e Person
Payroll ]
208 CLARK ST e 8 e 5000 Noncash  []
(Complete Part Il for
CHICAGO L 60603 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) {c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
10 ILLINOIS EQUAL JUSTICE FOUNDATION ~ Person
Payroll O
180 N STETSON, SUITE 820 i $ 15000 Noncash O
(Complete Part i for
CHICAGO L 60601 e noncash contributions.)
@) (b) o). @
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
1 LAKE COUNTY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION. Person
Payroll O
MAGENESEESTSUITESOS $ 6000 Noncash a
{Complete Part |l for
WAUKEGAN IL 60085 noncash centributions.)
(@) (b) (c) (d
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
12 LAWYERS TRUST FUND Person
Payroll O

180 N STETSON AVE, SUITE820

CHICAGO iL 60601

$ 7500

Noncash O

(Complete Part |l for
noncash contributions.}

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)



Schedule B (Farm 990, 990-E2, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 2 '3

Name of organization
FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPE ASSQOCIATION

Employer identification number

Il cContributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a) (b} (©) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
13 | MEXICAN CONSULATEINCHICAGO . Person
Payroll O
204 S ASHLAND AVE. $ . 6580.20 Noncash O
(Complete Part il for
CHICAGO IL 60807 e noncash contributions.)
@ 3] © (d
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
14 PREGGY BROWNING FOUNDATION Person
Payroll O
100 SBROAD STSUITE1208 $ 6000 Noncash d
(Complete Part [l for
PHILADELPHIA PA 19110 - noncash contributions.)
(@) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
.35 | EDWARD BECKMAN Person
Payroll O
AINCLIFFTERRACE i S 7656 Noncash O
{Complete Part Ii for
CINCINNATI OH 45220 noncash contributions.}
@ (b} @ (d)
No Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person O
Payroll O
______ B $ . Noancash O
(Complete Part Il for
____________________________________________________________________________________ noncash contributions.}
(a) (b) (c) ()
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
e Person O
Payroll O
______________________________________________________ S Noncash [}
(Complete Part Il for
A A noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (¢} (d
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
. . Person ]
Payroll ]
............ $ Noncash [

(Complete Part 1l for
noncash contributions.)

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-E2, or 990-PF) (2018)



Schedule 8 (Form 980, 890-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 3

Name of organization
FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT

Employer identification number

36-4306362

Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

A (b) FMV ( ) mat ) (d)
rom - . or estimate .
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
(zf:) No. b) i () ) @
rom R . or estimate’ .
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" $...
o ) FMV ( ) imat ) )
rom - . or estimate .
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
............................... . $ . e
rom . . or estimate .
Part | Description of noncash property given (Ses Instructions.) Date received
e S B
P (b) FMV ( ) imat ) (d)
rom e . or estimate .
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
S e
(:;) No. b) EMV ( (c) ) (@)
rom . . or estimate .
Part | Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
$

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-E2, or 890-PF} (2018}



Schedule 3 (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 980-PF) (2018)

Page 4

Name of organization
FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT

Employer identification number
36-4306362

Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or

{10} that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e} and
the fallowing line entry. For organizations completing Part lll, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.) » §

Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

No.
(?,)-on? {b) Purpaose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is heild
Part |
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No. . . A ee s
from {b} Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |
(e} Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No. . B . e s
from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{(a) No. A . .. -
from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |
(e} Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

Schedule B {Form 990, 990-E2, or 990-PF) {2018)



SCHEDULE D i . B No. 1505~
(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements | e o, 1545 0047

» Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, 2@ 1 8
Part IV, line 6,7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
Open to Public

Department of the Treasury . > Attach. to Form 990. . ) .
Intemal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Employer identification number

Name of the organization

FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT 36-4306362

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Compilete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

{a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total number at end of year . .
2  Aggregate value of contribut'ons to (dunng year)
3  Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
4  Aggregate value at end of year .
§ Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor acvised

funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . . . . . . [ Yes [J No
6

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the danor or donar advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. L L. L L. O Yes [J No

Conservation Easements.
Compilete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
[ Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) [J Preservation of a historically important land area

[ Protection of natural habitat (O3 Preservation of a certified historic structure
) Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number cf conservationeasements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2a

b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . Coe 2b

¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified nistoric structure mcluded in (a) o 2c

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register . . . Lo 2d

3  Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released extlnguushed or terminated by the organization during the

tax year b

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . [] Yes [] No
6  Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
>
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservazion easements during the year
>3
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)()
and section 170(h))BY? . . . . . . . L [J Yes [] No

9 In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assefs.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, Part iV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part Xlll, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIli, line1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . » §
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . .»

2 If the organization received or held works of art hlstorlcal treasures or other srmllar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIll, line1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .P» &

b AssetsincludedinForm990,PartX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., ,P» g

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 52283D Schedule O (Form 990} 2018




Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 2
Part 1 Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

o

4

5

Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):

[0 Public exhibition d [J Loan or exchange programs

(O Scholarly research e [J Other
[0 Preservation for future generations

Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organizatior’s exempt purpose in Part
Xii.

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintaired as part of the organization’s collection? . . [} Yes [J No

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 880, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.

1a |s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? . . . . . . . . . . . . e [] Yes [ No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xlll and complete tre foIIOwmg table:
Amount
¢ Beginningbalance . . . . . . . . . . . . L L L. ic
d Additionsduringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . .. L L. 1d
e Distributions duringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ie
f Ending balance . . . 1f
23 Did the organization mclude an amount on Form 990 F’arl X Ilne 21 for 25Crow or custodlal account liability? (7] Yes [ No
If "Yes,"” explain the arrangement in Part Xiil. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xiil . . . .
Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
{a) Currcn: year {b) Prior year {c) Two years back | {d) Three years back | (e} Four years back

b

Beginning of year balance
Contributions .

Net investment earnings, galns and
losses . R

Grants or scholarships

Other expenditures for facilities and
programs . .
Administrative expensss .

End of year balance

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

Board designated or quasi-endowment » %
Permanent endowment » %
Temporarily restricted ecndowment b Y

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes | No
i) unrelated organizations . . . . . . . . . L L L L 3ali)

(i) related organizations . . . e 3a(ii)

If “Yes" on line 3afii), are the rclated organlzatlons hsLed as requued on Schedule R'? e e 3b

Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis | (b} Cost or cther basis {c) Accumulated (d) Book value
{investment) {other) depreciation
fa Land
b Buildings . .o
¢ Leasehold improvements
d Equpment . . . . . . . . . 4255 3216 1039
e Other
Total. Add Ilnes1a1hrough 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, colurmn (B), line 10c.) . . . . . » 1039

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018



Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
Part Vil Investments —Other Securities.

Complete if the organization answered *Yes” on Form 990, Part |V, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

{a) Description of security or calegory (b} Book value (c} Method of valuation
(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

Pays 3

(1) Financial derivatives .

(2) Closely-held equity interests .

@) Other
)

Total. (Column (£) must equal Form 990, Part X, cal. (B) fine 12.)
GCllll  Investments—Program Related.
Compilete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of investment (b) Book vaiue {c) Method of valuation.
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
@)
(3
(4)
(5}
(6)
N
(8)
{9)
Total, (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. {8} line 13.) P
Part IX Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
{a) Description (b) Book value

(1)

(2

3}

4}

(8)

(6)

@

{8)

(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, ccl. (Bjline15.)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . W

Part X Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.

1. {a) Description of liability (b} Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

()

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

@

(8)

{9)
Total, {Column (b) must equal Form 930, Fart X, col. (B) line 25.) »
2, Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnots has been provided in Part XIl! ]

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018



Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 4

Part Xl Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . 1 413455
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VI, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (lossesyoninvestments . . . . . . . . . | 2a 6777

b Donated services and use of facilites . . . . . . . . . . . |2b

¢ Recoveriesofprioryeargrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2

d Other (DescribeinPartXitty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

e Addlines2athrough2d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2 6777
3 Subtract line 2e fromline1 . . . e e 3 406678
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part Vlll Ilne 12 but not on hne 1

a Investment sxpenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line7b . . | 4a

b Other (DescrbemnPartXily. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [4b

¢ Addlines4aand4b . . . B 1. L
§ Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (T/'HS must equal Form 990 Partl //ne 72 ) o 5 406678

:~1a® (IR Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return,
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 477110
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 980, Part iX, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facilites . . . . . . . . . . . |2a
b Prioryearadjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2b
¢ Otherlosses . . . L e 2¢c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) e ¢ |
e Addlines2athrough2d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... |2
3 Subtractline 2e fromlinet . . ., . e e e e e e e 3
4  Amourts included on Form 980, Part IX, Iune 25 bl,t not on hne 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vill, line7b . . | 4a
b Other (DescribeinPartXllly. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |4b
¢ Addlinesd4aand4b . . . . . . . . . 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (Thls must equal Form 990 Partl //ne 78 ) S 5 477110

Ele® 4l Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part ll, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, Ines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part Xl, lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART IV, LINE 2B - FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT HOLDS FUNDS FOR CLIENTS WHO HAVE RECEIVED

POSTITIONS THAT ARE MATERIAL TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. THE ORGANIZATION RETURNS FOR THE YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2016, 2017 ARE SUBJECTTO EXAMINATION BY THE IRS, GENERALLY FOR THREE YEARS AFTER THEY ARE FILED.

Schedule D {Form 990) 2018
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m Supplemental Information (continued)
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities | OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) Complete if the organization answered "Yas” on Form 9390, Part |V, line 17, 18, or 18, or if the

organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. 2 @ 1 8
Department of the Treasury » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ, Open to Public
Internal Havenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. inspection
Name of the organization Employaer identification number

FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT 36-4306362

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activilies. Check all that apply.

a [ Mail solicitations e [ Sclicitation of non-government grants
b [ Internet and email solicitations f [J Solicitation of government grants

¢ ] Phone solicitations g [ Special fundraising events

d [ In-person solicitations

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 390, Part V) or entity in connecticn with professional fundraising services? OYes [INo

b If “Yes,” list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under whicn the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

3 } (v} Amount paid lo .
{i) Name and address of individual (i) Did fundraiser have | ) Grogs receipts {or retained by) (V'? Amount paid to

oreny (e Waciny | Ceusedrercongol | MEISIES ) nmsrioedn | eeanech

cal. (i)

Yes No

10

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...,

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from
registration or licensing.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 50083+ Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule G (Form 890 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2

m Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more
than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with
gross receipts greater than $5,000.

{a) Event #1 (b) Everit #2 {c} Other avents (d) Total events
V BECKMAN FR {add co[. {a) through
(event typo} {event type) {total number} cal. {c))
2
% 1 Grossreceipts . . . . 30716
o
2 Less: Contributions . . 142586
3 Gross income {line 1 minus
line2) . . . . . . . 16460
4  (Cash prizes .
5 Noncashprizes . . . 13260
n o
21 6 Rent/facility costs .
&
Q
&g | 7 Foodand beverages .
g
& 8  Entertainment
9  Other direct expenses
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through Qincolumn(d . . . . . . . . . . WP 13260
11 Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from lire 3, column{d) . . . . . P 3200

il  Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990 Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

[} ; b) Pull tabs/instant d) Total ga {add
2 {a} Bingo bnn(gZ)/progressllve bingo {e} Other gaming c(ol, {a) a"%'&rg;? gol {ch
g
@
T | 1  Grossrevenue .
9| 2 Cashprizes .
5
2| 3 Noncash prizes
i
g 4  Rent/facility costs .
=

5  Other direct expenses

O Yes %|(] Yes %3 Yes %

6 Volunteerlabor. . . . |[J No J No [] No

7  Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 throughSincolumnn{d) . . . . . . . . . . »

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column{d . . . . . . . . »

9  Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activites:

a |s the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? . . . . . . . . . [dYes [JNo
b If “No," explain:

10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year? . [JYes [JNo
b If"Yes," explain:

Schedule G (Form 990 or 930-EZ) 2018



Schedule G (Form 990 or 99C-EZ) 2018 Page 3

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? . . . . e [lyes [INo
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnershlp or other entity
formed to administer charitable gaming? . . . . C e e e e e e o o0 OYes ONo
13  Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a Theorganization’sfacility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. |13 %
b Anoutside facility . . . . e .o . 13b %
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organlzatlon ] gammg/specnal events books and
records:
NI P e
Address »

158 Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming

revenue? . . . [OYes [INo
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of gammg revenue recelved by the orgamzatlon > 3 and the

amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party® ¢ T
c [f"Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

16  Gaming manager information:

Name »

Gaming manager compensation P> $

Description of services provided »

[ Director/officer O Employee O Independent contractor

17  Mandatory distributions:

a s the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? . . . . . L {dyes [JNo
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be dlstnbuted to other exempt orgamzanons or
spent in the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year »  $
Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v); and

Part I, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information.
See instructions.

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2018



SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | ©oMBNo. 1545-0047

{Form 990 or 990-E2) Complete to pravide information for respanses ta specific questions on 7
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 2 @ 1 8

Department of the Treasury > A_naCh to Form 990 or 990-EZ: ] Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT 36-4306362

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) {2018)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Farmworker and Landscaper Advocacy Project

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Farmworker and Landscaper Advocacy Project (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of
activities and change in net assets, functional expense, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that [ plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.



Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Farmworker
and Landscaper Advocacy Project, as of December 31, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

S, A P

Northbrook, Illinois
June 11, 2019



FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Net Assets Without Net Assets With

ASSETS Donor Restrictions ~ Donor Restrictions Total

Cash $ 26,050 §$ 12,966 § 39,016
Cash- Client trust 1,137 37 1,174
Investments 181,627 . - 181,627
Other assets-deposit 952 - 952

Property and equipment (less accumulated
depreciation of § 3,216) 1,039 - 1,039
Total Assets $ 210,805 $ 13,003 § 223,808

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accrued expense $ 1,321 § - § 1,321
Client trust deposits 1,137 - 1,137
Total Liabilities _ 2,458 - 2,458

NET ASSETS
Net assets 208,347 13,003 221,350
Total Net Assets 208,347 ' 13,003 221,350
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 210,805 $ 13,003 § 223,808

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-5-



FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Net Assets without Net Assets with
SUPPORT AND REVENUE: Donor Restrictions  Donor Restrictions Total
Support:
Corporations and Foundations S 39,644 $ 13,003 52,647
Law firms 21,119 - 21,119
Individuals 11,013 - 11,013
In-kind donations 176,159 - 176,159
Board 1,650 - 1,650
Church - - -
Special events 17,456 - 17,456
Net assets released from restrictions 69,362 - 69,362
Total support $ 336403 $ 13,003 349,406
Revenue:
Legal fees 51,233 - 51,233
Unrealized loss on investments 6,777 - 6,777
Interest and dividends 6,039 - 6,039
Total revenue 64,049 - 64,049
Total support and revenue $ 400,452 % 13,003 413,455
EXPENSES:
Program services b 411,724 § - 411,724
Management and general 45,897 - 45,897
Fundraising and development 19,489 - 19,489
Total expenses $ 477,110 § - 477,110
Change in net assets $ (76,658) $ 13,003 (63,655)
Net assets - January 1, 2018 285,005 - 285,005
Net assets - December 31, 2018 $ 208,347 § 13,003 221,350

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-



FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Organization Program Management
Total Services and General Fundraising
Accounting and payroll fees $ 5319 § - $ 5319 § -
Conference, meeting, meals, workshops 1,749 1,544 84 121
Consultant fees 34,770 21,900 12,870 -
Credit card fees 210 . 210 -
Depreciation 1,418 1,418 - -
Dues, fees, subscriptions, publications 75 - 75 -
Equipment purchase 163 163 - -
In-kind 176,158 158,298 - 17,860
Miscellaneous 4,414 4,414 - -
Office supplies 996 900 96 -
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 28,147 24,178 3,969 -
Printing and Reproduction 3,786 3,347 - 439
Professional liability insurance 1,710 1,710 - -
Program supplies 70 70 - -
Rent 24,000 21,000 3,000 -
Salaries and wages 176,766 156,536 20,230 -
Special events 1,069 - - 1,069
Telephone 1,734 1,734 - -
Travel 14,169 14,165 4 -
Workers compensation 387 347 ) 40 -
Total expense $ 477,110 $ 411,724 g 45,897 $ 19,489

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-7-



FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

INCREASE <DECREASE> IN CASH:

Change in net assets 3 (63,655)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,418
Loss on sale of investments _ -
Change in other liabilities (4,988)
Change in other current assets 1,051
Net Cash (Used by) Operating Activities ; (66,174)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 69,223

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: -

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ 3,049
CASH - JANUARY 1, 2018 ' 37,141
CASH - DECEMBER 31, 2018 $ 40,190

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-8- :



FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

NATURE AND PROGRAMS OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Farmworker and Landscaper Advocacy Project (FLAP) was created in 1999 in response to amendments to Federal law
which severely limited the assistance that federally-funded legal services programs could provide to many agency clients.

-The mission of the Farmworker and Landscaper Advocacy Project (FLAP) -Ayuda para Trabajadores- is to improve
working conditions for migrant and seasonal workers in Illinois, including low-income farthworkers, nursery workers,
greenhouse workers, landscapers, snow plowing workers, packinghouse workers, cannery workers, restaurant workers and
meat and poultry workers and their households.

FLAP carries out this mission through outreach, litigation, community legal education, community education, information
and referrals and partnering with other organizations to fight human labor trafficking.. FLAP programs are as follows:

Litigation Support

FLAP files lawsuits on behalf of individuals and as class actions, regardless of immigration status. FLAP focuses primarily on
wage and hour violations but also finds an attorney and refers cases such: personal injury, nursing home abuse and neglect,
medical malpractice, wrongful death, birth injury, product liability, car, trucking, bus and aviation accidents, premises liability,
Federal Torts Claims Act, Assisted Living Negligence, home health care abuse and neglect, DUI, Social Security Disability,
family law, Immigration and Breach of Contracts among others. FLAP also refers cases arising under Illinois workers’
compensation laws and other labor laws to experienced counsel.

N

Outreach
FLAP staff travels to 18 counties throughout Illinois to‘educate our population and increase their access to legal services focusing

in Northern Illinois. Additionally, FLAP has working relationships, with many organizations and law firms to better reach and
serve immigrants, migrant and seasonal workers.

Community L'egal Education

FLAP staff provides know-your-rights workshops. FLAP attorneys answer questions regarding employments rights, and FLAP
staff refers clients to agencies and law firms with expertise in other legal fields that can assist them.



FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows current accounting standards. Under those standards, the Organization is required to
report information regarding its financial position according to two classes of net assets, based on the presence or absence of
donor imposed restrictions: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions . Net Assets Without
Donor Restrictions — Amounts that are not subject to usage restrictions based on donor-imposed requirements. This class also
includes assets previously restricted where restrictions have expired or been met. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions ~
Assets subject to usage limitations based on donor-imposed or grantor restrictions. These restrictions may be temporary or
may be based on a particular use. Restrictions may be met by the passage of time or by actions of the Organization. Certain
restrictions may be needed to be maintained in perpetuity. Earnings related to restricted net assets will be included in net
assets without donor-restrictions unless otherwnse specifically required to be included in donor-restricted net assets by the
donor or by applicable state [aw.

Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue
Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets with or without donor restrictions.
Donated Services

$176,159 of in kind contributions were included in the financial statements as income and related off-setting expense during
the year ended December 31, 2018.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all hxghly liquid investments with an initial maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments
The Organization’s investments at December 31, 2018 consist of 2,346 common no par value shares of Cincinnati Financial

Corporation recorded at fair value based on quoted prices in active markets, which was approximately $77.42 per share at
December 31, 2018. The market value at December 31, 2018 amounted to $181,627.
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FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Statement Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cag. italization policy and depreciation

The Organization capitalizes equipment and other similar assets in excess of $1,000. Depreciation on these current assets are
on the straight line basis, for a period of 3 years.

Statement of Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various program and supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement
of functional expenses. Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs; general and administrative expense; and fund
raising. Expenses related to more than one function are charged on pro-rata basis as estimated by management. Salaries and
benefits are allocated on the percentage of time that the individual spends working on a given area. The allocation is done as
a percentage of hours dedicated to an area to the total amount of the hours the staff member works. Certain expenses are

allocated based on their usage. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services
benefited.

Tax Status

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It qualifies for
charitable contribution deductions under Section 170(b) (1) (iii) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private

foundation under Section 509(a) (1). All required payroll tax filings through December 31, 2018 have been filed by the
Organization.

Long Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to be held and used are
recognized based on the excess of the assets’ carrying amount over the fair value of the asset. Fair value is based on market

quotes, if available, or is based on valuation techniques. There were no impairment losses recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2018. -
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FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, except on net
income derived from unrelated business activities. The Organization is not involved in any venture which, in its opinion, is
subject to tax on unrelated business income. Accordingly, the Organization believes that it has appropriate support for any
tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. The
Organization’s federal Exempt Organization Returns for the years ending December 31,2015, 2016 and 2017 are subject to
examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed. Any years prior to January 1, 2015 are therefore
considered closed. The tax return for the year ended December 31, 2018 is due on May 15, 2019 and been extended.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Updated (ASU) No.
2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. ASU 2016-
14 requires significant changes to the financial reporting model of organizations who follow the not-for-profit reporting
model. The changes include reducing the classes of net assets from three to two — net assets with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions. The ASU also requires changes in the way certain information is aggregated and reported
by the Organization, including required disclosures about liquidity and availability of resources and increased disclosures on
functional expenses. The new standard is effective for the Organization’s year ending December 31, 2018 and thereafier
and must be applied on a retrospective basis. The Organization adopted the ASU effective January 1, 2018. Adoption of
the ASU did not result in any reclassification or restatements to net assets or change in net assets, however, the net asset
descriptions for the year ended December 31, 2017 were modified to conform to the new accounting standard.

DATE OF MANAGEMENT REVIEW

The Organization has reviewed subsequent events through and including June 11, 2019 which is the first date the financial
statements were available for distribution.

AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

At December 31, 2018, the Organization has $207,677 available to meet needs for general expenditures consisting of cash
without restriction of $26,050 and $181,627 of liquid investments. None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other
contractual restrictions. Accordingly, all such funds are available to meet the cash needs of the Orgamzatlon inthenext 12
months, The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets that provide sufficient
funds for general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other obligations as they become due. In general, the
Organization maintains sufficient financial assets on hand to meet 30 days’ worth of normal operating expenses.
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FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

FACILITY LEASE AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization executed a new lease effective October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2020 which calls for a monthly base
rate of $2,000 per month, Lease payments were $24,000 for the year ending December 31, 2018. The organization is on a
month to month lease. Subsequent to December 31, 2018, $24,000 and $18,000 are required as lease payments for the
respective years ending December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020 under provisions of the current lease, for a total projected
payment of $42,000 under the lease in effect at December 31, 2018.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Organization’s property and equipment at December 31, 2018 amounted to the following:

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures $ 4,255
Net property and equipment at cost $ 4,255
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,216)
Net property and equipment $ 1,039

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of an estimate of fair value of certain financial instruments. The

Organization's significant financial instruments are cash, accounts receivable, and other short-term assets and liabilities. For
these financial instruments, carrying values approximate fair value,
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FARMWORKER AND LANDSCAPER ADVOCACY PROJECT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization maintained account balances in depository institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 in each institution. Additionally, the Organization has stock investments in an investment
company, comprising stock in one Company as described previously. This stock is subject to fluctuation.
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